
 
RFP 2017-0007 Restructuring Advisory Committee: Water and Sewer 

Question and Answer 
 

Question Cut-Off 2/13/17 
 

1. What is the estimated value of the sewer system? 
 

Determining an appropriate valuation of the system would be responsibility of the 
successful responder. 
 

2. Are you looking for a multiple advisors or just one? 
 

We may have multiple advisors depending on proposals. 
  

3. When will a RFP for the restructuring will come to market, as well as the dates for a 
shortlist, preferred bidder and financial close? 
 
Release date is 2/3/17. Submissions are due by 2/24/17. A shortlist will be completed by the 
end of February. The intent for Contract Award and Project start would be by the end of 
March. 

 
4. As a women-owned firm (although not registered with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania) 

we have two concerns – the lack of time for us to register in Pennsylvania before the 
proposals are due, and the potential practice of some municipalities that if a firm serves as 
the prime contractor for a project, that firm’s minority or women-owned status will not 
count against MBE/WBE goals.  Can you address those issues?  
 
If your company is a 100% women-business owned then complete the MBE form with that 
information. I would also state that you are currently in the process of being certified and 
specify what that status is and the estimated certification date so it is known. If a company 
acting as a prime is certified as a MBE/WBE and doing 100% of the work then that would be 
100% for the contract. If the MBE/WBE prime company is sub contracting to another 
MBE/WBE then list the amount in percent of work that company would be doing 
potentially. 
  

5. In addition, the RFP asks for information about MBE/WBE participation, and asks for specific 
dollar commitments – when it Is not even certain what types of expertise will actually be 
used in the project and the relative amounts of effort for various disciplines.  For example, if 
a minority-owned law firm is identified as a subcontractor, but the final contract says that 
the City will furnish some of the necessary legal expertise, how can the offeror comply with 
the MBE/WBE filings submitted with the proposal? 
 
Similar to the above. Please list any subcontractor that could potentially be doing work in 
this instance with an estimated amount depending on their primary function of the project. 



6. Will the work be focused on any particular division or will the scope be the Authority as a 
whole? 

Scope will be on the Authority as a whole. 

7. Where will the location of this project be? 

The project is primarily within the City of Pittsburgh but PWSA also serves some small 
suburban communities which may be included in the overall plan. 

8. We have some estimated time that this project can be completed, but I want to make sure 
that it aligns with the expectations. What is the initial expectation for approximate duration 
of this project? 

The time is negotiable but the work under this RFP is preliminary to developing another RFP 
for actual alternative operation of the authority so speed is of the essence.  The City hopes 
to complete this phase of the work within several months. 

9. In Section 4.1 and Section 8.1.5of the RFP, reference is made to legal services (specifically 
tasks 1, 5, 11 and 12). Does the City wish to engage as part of this RFP legal counsel or is the 
City seeking general commercial and procurement advice? 

The City is seeking general commercial and procurement advice which would be legal in 
nature.  We are also seeking advice on Public Private Partnerships with a view toward to 
maintaining Public controls and oversight.  However, the City reserves the right to add 
additional or substitute legal advice to this project.  

10. Based on the foregoing answers, would the City consider a nonconforming proposal that 
does not include legal related services, per Section 8.1.7 Exceptions? 

Yes.  The City would consider nonconforming proposals that are missing some requested 
elements of the RFP, however, respondents should note in their responses that they are 
eliminating some sections from their response and name those sections.  

11. Does the City have technical advisors engaged in forecasting capital, operations and 
maintenance estimates for upgrades and improvements? 

Yes, but the City will make decisions on whether or not to use those internal advisors for a 
number of reasons. 

 
12. Can the City provide a breakdown or relative weighting of the Criteria outlined in Section 

9.2? 

There is no weighting provided in the RFP so each criteria will be weighted equally. 



 
13. Background: It is often the case that financial advisors and legal advisors on similar P3 type 

advisories are hired independently from each other pursuant to different RFP’s.  

Would it be possible for a law firm to submit a non-conforming bid to serve as legal advisor, 
without co-presenting with a financial advisor team member?   

In such a case the two advisors would be hired independently, but once hired the two would 
work together with the City team to develop and deliver the scope of work, functioning fully 
as an advisory team. We would envision in this case (1) working with each other to produce 
task orders, some joint and some for one advisor or the other, and (2) seeking to develop to 
the extent possible a fixed fee per task order per advisor.  In cases where fixed fees are not 
possible, the agreed hourly rates per professional would apply. 

Yes, the City is open to nonconforming proposals but responders should be specific about 
which parts they are responding to and which parts they are eliminating. 

14. If a legal firm and financial firm submit a combined response, can the two present as “co-
prime” contractors, whereby each firm has a separate engagement letter with the City?    

In this case the two advisors would work as a team, but the City would pay each institution 
directly for its respective periodic fees/task orders/deliverables, etc.  

Yes. 

15. “Can the City clarify what it means by “restructuring?” Is this RFP related to a financial 
restructuring of any debt outstanding at PWS; or, alternatively, is restructuring used in the 
more transformative sense of improving PWS’ overall operations and service delivery, or a 
combination thereof?” 

Restructuring means that we are looking for advice on how to "restructure" and reorient 
the organization for maximum effectiveness and reliability for the public.   We are open to 
proposals and we want a contractor who can give us the best recommendations.  
Restructuring refers to all aspects of the agency listed in the question plus any that are not 
listed. 

16.   We understand that a number of engineering / technical consultants are already engaged 
by PWSA in various capacities. Please can you clarify whether such consultants are 
excluded from bidding for this project, or whether they would be eligible to join a bidding 
team. 

Current consultants to the City or to the PWSA would not be forbidden to propose under 
this RFP. 

   



17. If existing technical advisers are ineligible to join a bidding team, will all relevant data held 
by these advisers be made available to an incoming technical adviser? 

Existing advisers are not ineligible but their data will be shared to the extent that it is City or 
PWSA data. 

18.  Would it be acceptable to bid to provide legal and financial services only, and then 
collaborate with PWSA's existing engineering / technical advisers to deliver the operational 
component of the assignment? 

Yes, responders can bid selected sections of the RFP but they must specifically say which 
sections they are "bidding" and which they are ignoring in their response. 

19.  Is the City able to provide guidance as to its expectations for the duration of the 
assignment? 

Yes, in as much as the City has data to respond to questions. 

20. Is the City able to provide guidance as to its expectations in respect of project budget? 

Part of the response is a budget for the project.  The City will not predetermine a budget for 
possible responders. 

21. Please can you clarify how the cost proposal will be evaluated given that scope, time inputs 
and duration are subject agreement between the City and the selected bidder. 

Cost is one of several factors that will be evaluated per the RFP. While a specific statement 
of work will be developed by the City and selected team, the RFP asked for proposals that 
include a rate card and potential approach so they City can evaluate team capabilities and 
approach knowing the detailed scope would be developed together.  

22. Please can you clarify how the cost proposal will be evaluated in the context of the other 
criteria set out in the submittal requirements?  What weighting does the cost proposal as 
compared to the other criteria?  

See response to Question #12. 

23. The RFP’s goal is to select a person, organization or project team to service in the Role of 
Restructuring Advisory Team.  Does the City have a preference for one firm to provide all 
the Services or must the Respondent have a team of firms to provide all the services 
described in the Scope Detail?  Will a firm that has a particular area of expertise be 
considered for a particular role, such as financial consulting or legal services even if it 
cannot provide all of the services in the Scope Detail?  

The City is open to structuring the team in the most workable way possible.  That includes 
segmented areas of expertise or partial responses.  



24. Will the Respondent if selected be considered a Municipal Advisor as that term is defined 
by Securities and Exchange Commission’s Municipal Advisor Rule? 

No. 

25.  Will participation on the Restructuring Advisory Team preclude a firm from being involved 
in the implementation of any recommendations made by the Team?  For example, if we 
recommend a Pay for Success financing structure, will the members of the team be barred 
from being one of the professionals involved in executing the financing? 

The firm(s) selected through this RFP will not be permitted to be involved in implementing 
the recommendations except for in an advisory capacity to the City. 

26.  How should the Team be organized?  Is the City anticipating that there would be one lead 
contractor for the Team with whom the City has a contract and that lead contractor would 
subcontract with the other team members?  If so, this arrangement would potentially 
create challenges given the professional licensing requirements of the various firms 
involved on the Team.  Would the City consider entering into separate contracts with each 
of the Team member firms as it does when it issues bonds? 

It is up to the proposer to propose a structure for the team. 

27.  For the MBE/WBE Good Faith Commitment Form/Waiver Request, could a firm respond on 
its own with the recognition that the City could add other team members that would allow 
it to meet its MBE/WBE Goals?   

Each participant will need to go through the Good Faith Effort checklist as they build their 
team and response within the proposal. Participants are able to provide additional 
suggestions and recommendations within their proposal response. 

28.  For the cover letter, there is a statement required that the submitting firm will perform the 
services in the RFP.  If a firm only has one particular specially (as referred to in Question 1 
above) can it just state that it will perform only certain of the services mentioned in the 
Scope Detail? 

Responders can respond to parts of the RFP and it would be helpful to specify in the cover 
letter if you are responding to specific sections or the whole RFP.  List the sections you are 
responding to or omitting. 

29. As we understand it, PWSA provides clean water and sewage conveyance (including 
conveyance for neighboring municipalities) but doesn’t actually treat the sewage – this is 
passed to Allegheny County Sanitary Authority (ALCOSAN) for treatment. Is the scope of 
any analysis limited to this existing services or could it include anything undertaken by 
ALCOSAN. 

 



The response should not include specific responsibilities of ALCOSAN for sewage 
treatment but it is City/PWSA responsibility to maintain sewers within the City and to 
comply with PA Department of Environmental Programs (DEP) requirements as well as 
green initiatives for managing storm water runoff. 

 
30. Does the City/PWSA have a plan for necessary upgrades/enhancements to its 
assets/facilities – to what extent are they looking for the Team to advise on 
options/review existing plans. Has the City/PWSA undertaken any financial analysis of the 
cost of any such upgrade? 

 
The City will provide the selected team with relevant documents. 

 
31. Does the City envisage the first phase of work for the Team will be to deliver an 
options appraisal/business plan setting out the options for delivering the clean water 
and sewage services including technical deliverability, commercial deliverability, legal 
and commercial structures, financial implications etc. 

 
Yes. 

 
32. What resources will the City provide to support the work and deliverables? Does the 
City have an opinion on how it would like its staff and officials to work with the Team 
(e.g. co-located joint team etc.) 

 
Proposers should recommend optimal ways of doing the work including location.  
Ultimately this will be worked out through contract negotiations with successful 
responders. 

 
33. Please elaborate on the “education” requirement, as spelled out in the RFP, for the 
City staff and officials on the engagement process, valuation, and other modules.  For 
example, is there a requirement for a “formal-type” training, or can this be addressed 
through various workshops along the process? 
 
The City envisions a series of briefings for city leadership and elected officials as well as 
public engagement sessions.  

 
34. In evaluating and selecting your consulting partner, are the criteria for the proposal 
analysis, as set out in the RFP equally weighted, or will there be more emphasis on any one 
[or more] particular aspects of the proposal?  

 
See response to #12. 
 

 

 



35. We have one question regarding the scope of services (Section 4.1) and are hoping you 
can provide a clarification. 

The scope makes reference to operational issues relating to the water and sewer services 
(paragraph 1) and the provision of operational analyses (paragraph 12). Should we read this 
language as requiring the Team to provide engineering input/analysis on the existing system 
or is the term “operational” limited to commercial and legal aspects of the services 
currently being provided by the City? 
 
General engineering is needed to the extent necessary to advise on capital program. 
 

36. What goals are you aiming to achieve through the potential restructuring of PWSA (e.g. 
improving customer service, minimizing operational issues such as sewer overflows, 
restructuring PWSA’s debt, introducing private equity/capital, avoiding large increases in 
customer rates, etc.)? 

All of the above are subjects of restructuring and any other aspect of the operation that 
proposer may identify in its response. 

37.  Based on the scope outlined in the document, a combination of diverse capabilities from 
different firms will be required to best advise the City of Pittsburgh. What are your views on 
retaining a consortium of firms (e.g. under a single prime contractor) versus retaining 
multiple independent entities? From a commercial standpoint, would you prefer to have 
contracts with each firms individually? 

Any structure is possible, however, there should be a single coordinator entity. 

38.  What is the budget allocated to this project? 

Budget proposals are part of the responsibility of responders. 

39.  When are you expecting to start the RFI process mentioned in section 4.1 item 8? 

As immediately as possible. 

40.  Are there any other on-going/planned projects or upcoming legislative changes that may 
impact this restructuring project? 

Not at this time, although local legislation and coordination with state agencies and state 
government will be required to some degree. 

 



41.  Would alternatives for restructuring be limited to occur within existing law, or would 
alternatives that might require changes to appropriate aspects of local or state governing 
legislation, ordinances or the City charter be potential avenues to consider? 

All such changes are possible and may be considered. 

42. Are you willing to accept other types of cost proposals beyond what is described in section 
8.1.5 (e.g. monthly retainer, fixed fee, success fee)? 

Yes. 

43. What are the primary drivers for the City’s decision to seek restructuring advisory services 
with regard to the PWSA? 

See RFP, prior responses, and relevant documents referred to at the end of this Q&A 
document. 

44.  Has the City set aside in its current or planned budget, or made a formal request to the City 
Council for a new budget item, for the advisory services, and if so what is that budget and 
for what length of term? 

 
None has been determined. This is part of the proposal response. 

 
45.  Has the City held discussions on this matter with the bargaining units representing PWSA 

employees? 
 

No, but that would be part of any final resolution of the restructuring.  It may be done by 
successful responders to Phase 2, which the Team will help to design. 

 
46.  Will the City involve its legal counsel in working together with the outside legal counsel 

included as part of the Advisory Team? 
 

Probably yes. 
 
47.  Has the City conducted any kind of preliminary legal, regulatory and contractual assessment 

of the options likely to be considered as part of the restructuring analysis?  If so, is such 
assessment available? 

 
Limited analysis has been conducted but it would probably only be available to successful 
responders. 

 
48.  Has the City conducted any kind of preliminary valuation of the PWSA, its operations and/or 

assets?  If so, is such assessment available? 
 

None has been conducted.  Asset valuation is a responsibility of a successful responder. 
 



49.  Has the PWSA recently conducted an asset inventory and/or condition assessment? 
 

Available information is either public record or provided to successful respondent. 

50.  Does the he City reserves the right, or consider it has the right, to divide the scope of work 
among multiple Teams?  The RFP talks about concurrent negotiation, but not building a team 
from the best respondents. 

Yes, the City reserves the right to build the Team in whatever way it feels to be most 
effective. 

 
51.  My organization is current exploring a Pay-for-Success alternative financing model for green 
infrastructure specifically, and has been working for the past two years to create a market for 
such opportunity in Pittsburgh, as well as to build investor and foundation interest.   Is the 
purpose of this RFP to identify advisors to help the City evaluate opportunities such as ours, or 
to build a team to actually create the financial structuring opportunities themselves. 

The City is looking for advisory services related to structures for operational improvements 
including, but not limited to, Pay-For-Success.   

52.  What is the expected timeline for this effort? 

As quickly as possible. 

53.  How much access will we have to PWSA personnel? 

Reasonable and limited access will be arranged.  This will be negotiated between successful 
responders, the City and the PWSA. 

54.  Does the City have any existing system market value of the water delivery and storm water 
management systems?  If so could they be provided to bidders? 

The City has no formal valuation other than existing public documents. 

55.  Are there collective bargaining agreements in place that could impact the city’s ability to 
operate a potential Public-Private Partnership (P3) to water and sewer services? If so, could you 
provide copies of the contracts and/or agreements, or expand in detail? 

Yes, and all relevant information will be provided to the selected team.  

 

 



56.  Does the city have any long term water or service contracts with either customers or 
suppliers that may by impacted by a P3 operations?  If so, could you provide copies of the 
contracts and/or agreements? 

The City does not have such agreements but PWSA, as the operator, has a number of 
existing agreements.  

57.   Can the city provide any approved capital improvement plans that identify system 
improvements over next three to five years? 

See #30. 

58.  In reference to RFP Section 4.1(2), please comment on the availability / existence of any 
pipe condition testing / assessment studies undertaken by the city that have been done, or are 
planned to be done, with regards to their potable water distribution system. 

See #30. 

59.  In reference to RFP Section 4.1(6), will we have access to a data room that can provide (at 
least) the following capital data: 

1.      Historic asset records containing the class, detail, acquisition date, cost and current 
book values of assets purchased / projects incurred 

  2.      Prior 5-year, current, and next 3-year capital improvement plans 

See #30. 

60.  In reference to RFP Section 8.1.3, are the resumes of all project professionals required for 
submission or just key personnel? 

Key personnel. 

61.  In reference to RFP Section 8.1.4, are there specific written deliverables that OMB 
contemplates? 

Per the RFP the City will work with the selected team to develop a detailed statement of 
work. 

62.  In reference to RFP Section 9.2,what is the weight given to each of the evaluation criteria? 

See response #12 

 



63. It is not clear if the City is anticipates one or multiple awards.  Is the proposer required to 
provide and propose on all of the services listed under 4.1, or can a proposer provide a bid to 
assist on most-but-not-all items under 4.1?  

See responses to previous questions on this matter. 

64. Section 4.1.2 of the RFP refers to “bifurcation of water delivery and storm water 
management systems.”  Please clarify.  Everywhere else in the RFP the terms “water and 
sewer services” are used.  Is the City considering scenarios where storm water is considered 
on its own? And have you carried out any past studies to evaluate it? 

Storm water management may be considered separately or as part of a unified system.  
Multiple proposals in various stages of completeness have been done and they are not all in 
agreement as to how to proceed.  

65. Can you advice if the city has determined a time period to complete tasks outlined in 
Section 4.1?  

As quickly as possible. 

Link to Relevant Public Documents 
Prospective respondents should review the PWSA website for publicly available documents that 
can provide additional information regarding the Authority's structure, operations, financials, and 
related issues.  
 
http://www.pgh2o.com/ 
 
In addition, the City Controller recently issued a performance audit regarding Authority 
operations. The audit can be found here: 
 
http://www.pittsburghpa.gov/controller-office/ 

http://www.pgh2o.com/
http://www.pittsburghpa.gov/controller-office/

